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s. 22(1)(a)(ii)
From: Declan O'Connor-Cox
Sent: Friday, 3 July 2020 3:15 PM
To: Kristy Domitrovic
Cc: Michelle Croker; s. 22(1)(a)(ii)
Subject: Major Projects briefs: MS20-000073 [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]
Attachments: SIGNED SUBMISSION.pdf; MS20-000073 002 Attachment A Dashboard -quarterly

assessment performance report-.pdf; MS20-000073 003 Attachment B Congestion
Busting Performance Report.docx; MS20-000073 004 Attachment C Major
Projects.docx

Hi Kristy

This is the first of three emails — one for each of the three briefs on Major Projects.

This first one (attached) established the first tranche of Major Projects in February this year. Attachment C provides
the names and descriptions of the Major Projects we recommended.

Declan
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, WATER AND THE ENVIRONMENT

MS20-000073
To: Minister for the Environment (For Decision)
EPBC CONGESTION BUSTING PERFORMANCE REPORTING AND MAJOR PROJECTS

Timing: 18 February 2020 - to ensure ongoing performance reporting is provided to you in a
timely manner.

Recommendations:

1. Note the progress to deliver the Government’s announced congestion busting for

environmental assessments.
Noted / Please discuss

2. That you agree to the format and content of the fortnightly performance report at

Attachment B. Fyou;de__ %Qﬁmca_ﬁeqoa—ﬁ
/ ’\M A <. 0 Pl di
. L+ 7 ease discuss

3. That you agree to the criteria and process for determining ‘major project’ status at

Attachment C.
Agreed /)Please discuss

4. That you approve the initial projects to be allocated ‘major project’ status at

Attachment C. .
O RIS | Marinus ki makines (RREroved | Blhase discuss
Minister: ., Date:
Comments:
[7/2/2
Clearing Officer: | Michelle Croker A/g First Assistant Ph:S. 47F(1)
Sent: 12/2/2020 Secretary, Mob:g_ 47F(1)
Environment
Approvals Division
Contact Officer: | Declan O’Connor-Cox | A/g Assistant Ph:S. 47F(1)
Secretary, Mob: s 47F(1)
Environment
Approvals Division
Key Points:

1. On 21 November 2019, the Australian Government announced an investment of
$25 million to reduce unnecessary delays within the existing assessment system,
including the establishment of a major projects team to ensure assessments can be
completed efficiently and thoroughly in accordance with the Environment Protection
and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act).
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2. This funding is for additional staff from January 2020 to June 2021 to:

a. Improve performance against statutory timeframes
b. Meet agreed timeframes for ‘major project’ approvals
c. Reduce the backlog of projects.

3. Also announced was a Digital Transformation of Environmental Assessment program.
This program will streamline processes, use technology to allow better integration across
jurisdictions and embed information standards to capture and reuse data. The program
includes three measures:

a. establishing a single online portal for proponents to interact with the environmental
assessment process

b. developing a digital environmental assessment system to deliver a streamlined and
faster assessment process

c. development of a biodiversity data repository to store and share information collected
by proponents such as wildlife surveys.

Progress to Date

4. Congestion busting project: We have recruited 35 additional staff with 17 staff expected
to commence during the coming weeks and another 26 before the end of the financial
year. We have also rolled-out training for the new staff. We are nearing completion of a
prioritised business and policy reform agenda to improve our efficiency and processes.
We have also established an approval tracking system and public-facing dashboard
quarterly assessment performance report (Attachment A). These systems track and
report on our performance and allow us to address assessments that are not tracking on
time.

5. Digital Transformation program: Scoping work is underway and initial meetings are being
held with Western Australia who will partner with the Department in the rollout of the
program.

Performance Reporting

6. A specific charter letter performance target is 28 per cent of key EPBC Act decisions to
be made within statutory timeframes by 30 June 2021 (compared to 14 per cent for
2018-19). This statistic is not publicly reported, and we anticipate stakeholder
expectations will be much higher. We are setting ourselves the ambitious target of
aiming to meet statutory timeframes 100 per cent of the time for key decisions from
1 January 2020.

7. The target of 100 per cent will not be reached immediately as recruitment, training and
integration of new staff is placing an initial pressure on our performance as existing staff
spend time away from assessments to support the expansion. We anticipate a timeframe
of 3 — 6 months for these pressures to be resolved and maximum performance reached.

8. As part of these commitments, we will be updating you on progress through fortnightly
performance reports. These will not be public reports, the Department’s public reporting
is the quarterly performance report (as mentioned above, at Attachment A). The
Department has prepared the first performance report (Attachment B) and is seeking
your approval of the format and content.



LEX-23961 Page 4 of 18

10.

11.

For January 2020, 59 per cent of decisions due for the month were made within statutory
timeframes (see first graph of Attachment B). Note that the second graph of the
performance report at Attachment B includes late ‘backlog’ decisions (late decisions
which were already due prior to the commencement of the project). These have been
reduced from 78 to 60.

Major Projects

To deliver on major project approvals, the Department proposes to report on and
manage a small number of the most nationally-significant projects as 'major projects’,
based on criteria linked to economic contribution and strategic significance of the
projects. Assessment of these projects will be afforded the highest priority and will be
resourced to ensure key decisions are made within agreed timeframes. The performance
report includes updates on our performance in managing major projects.

The Department is seeking your agreement to the process for selecting ‘major projects’
and approval of the initial recommended projects to be allocated major projects status,
outlined at Attachment C.

Sensitivities and Handling

12.

We anticipate the list of major projects will be public. There is likely to be pressure from
proponents wanting to be afforded major project status. The limited number of projects
afforded major project status will reduce administrative burden for both your office and
the Department and match our resourcing capability to service proponents. To manage
this pressure the major projects criteria provide clear messaging for why projects have
been afforded major project status. The Department will continue to aim to meet
statutory timeframes for all projects. ‘

Consultation: YES

13. Knowledge and Technology Division were consulted in the preparation of this brief.

ATTACHMENTS
A: Dashboard (quarterly assessment performance report)
B: EPBC Congestion Busting: Performance Report
C: Major projects criteria and allocation
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R - ’E Australian Government

Department of Agriculture,
Water and the Environment

Quarterly assessment performance report

Highlights
Some of the key highlights of decisions made during November 2019 to January 2020 are listed below.

In November 2019 the Star of the South Wind Farm Pty Ltd referred an action to undertake marine
geophysical and geotechnical surveys of the seabed off the coast of Gippsland, Victoria. As part of the
referral a number of measures were proposed to reduce impacts on listed threatened and migratory
whale species. As a result, on 7 January 2020 a delegate of the Minister decided that the project was
not a controlled action if undertaken in a particular manner.

It is anticipated that a separate referral for the construction of the wind farm will be submitted at a later
date.

On 10 January 2020 a delegate of the Minister decided that the extension of Canberra's existing light
rail network from the City to Commonwealth Park is a controlled action, due to impacts on the critically
endangered Golden Sun Moth and Commonwealth land. The impacts of the action will be further
scrutinised through a preliminary documentation assessment and is required to be approved under the
EPBC Act before it can proceed.

On 21 January 2020 a delegate of the Minister approved the proposed action with conditions. Approval
of this project provides for accessibility upgrades and improvements to work health and safety
standards, whilst protecting the values of this iconic world heritage property.

A complete list of all decisions can be found on the Public Notices website.

Number of decisions made this financial year (to 1 February 2020):

+ Referral Decisions — 104
+ Assessment Method Decisions — 56
» Approval Decisions — 53

+ Administrative Decisions - 331

http://www.environment.gov.au/protection/environment-assessments/quarterly-perfor... 11/02/2020
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Current performance

Referrals received and decisions made

B Referrals received [ Referral decisions made
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the action is done as it was described in the referral

http://www.environment.gov.au/protection/environment-assessments/quarterly-perfor... 11/02/2020
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Australian Government
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EPBC CONGESTION BUSTING: PERFORMANCE REPORT
JANUARY 2020

We have lifted our performance in the first month (January 2020)
Key Decisions due each month
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The Department’s Congestion Busting project commenced on 1 January 2020.

59 per cent of the 17 key decisions which fell due in the month of January 2020 were made within
statutory timeframes. This is shown by the red dot, and blue column respectively, in the above
graph.

Our performance is improving, and we are on track to meet our MYEFO
targets

Key Decisions made 2019-20 (YTD)

35
30 coccolecccccccccccsssccccsssccccccsdBollecccccccccccossssccsssssccsssssccsssssane
25
20
15
10
5
0
) ) ) ) ) S Q Q N} Q Q Q
N N N N N N v A% A% v v
N ; ; < ¥ ¢ & o ¢ ¢ R &
O VOQO GJQ,Q or NS K ¢ @ @'b N @'b W
s On Time I Late e \YTD percentage on time
June 2020 Target eeecece June 2021 Target e Commencement of the

congestion busting project

The Department made 194 key statutory decisions in the period between 1 July and

31 December 2019, before the Congestion Busting project started. Of those decisions, 18 per cent
were made on time. The Department’s performance has since improved to 21 per cent (as
demonstrated by the black trend line in the graph above) and we are on track to meet the final
MYEFO target of 28 per cent by 30 June 2021.
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The backlog is reducing

Backlog - Overdue Key Decisions
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Prior to 1 January 2020, there was a backlog of 78 overdue key decisions across 57 projects. As at
6 February 2020, the number of overdue decisions in the backlog had reduced to 60 (the red column
in the above graph) across 47 projects. The Department expects these to be progressively resolved.

Background
Statutory timeframes and key decisions

There are over 100 different statutory timeframes which an active project might potentially be
subject to during its assessment. Most of these are administrative (such as the Department
publishing the proponent’s documents on its website for public comment). There are three key
decisions (with their associated statutory timeframes) which proponents tend to be most interested:

e Decision on referral — whether a project requires assessment before it can take place.

e Decision on assessment method — the extent and complexity of the assessment required,

and whether it will be undertaken under a bilateral arrangement with states/territories.
e Decision on approval — the ultimate decision on whether the project can proceed.

There are currently 144 decisions pending across these three key stages.

Active projects

For the purpose of this report an active project is a project either awaiting a referral decision, or
which has received a controlled action referral decision but has not been lapsed, withdrawn or
approved.

There are currently 408 active projects. Of these, 60 are awaiting a referral or assessment method
decision, 40 are awaiting an approval decision, and 308 are not subject to any active key decisions.
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Major Projects update

The Department has identified six potential major projects for your consideration. Once determined,
these major projects will be afforded the highest priority in terms of their assessment. An update on
each project is provided in the table below.

Project Current status Next steps Comments

s. 22(1)(a)(l

‘On track to meet timeframes.O Some risk of not meeting timeframes.‘ High risk of not meeting timeframes.
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Proposed handling of 'major projects' subject to assessment under the EPBC Act
Overview

As part of implementing the Government's congestion busting agenda in relation to
environmental approvals, the Department proposes to manage a small number of the most
nationally-significant projects as 'major projects'. Assessment of these projects will be afforded
the highest priority and will be resourced and managed with a view to ensure key decisions
are made within agreed timeframes.

The Department will recommend projects for 'major project’ status to you for approval and will
provide regular reports to you on the Department's performance in managing the major
projects.

Recommendation of major projects to you will be based on an evaluation against agreed
criteria which focuses on economic contribution and strategic significance of the projects (see
below).

What is the proposed initial set of major projects?

The Department's proposed initial list of major projects comprises:

s. 22(1)(a)(l

See Appendix A below for further details on the nominated projects and other significant
projects.

What are major projects and why is it necessary to limit their number?

The Department proposes to prioritise and appropriately resource the assessment and
approval of six projects which are the most nationally-significant and critical due to their
economic contribution and strategic significance.

The proposed limit on the number of major projects will minimise the administrative burden of
managing major projects. It also recognises the constraints on the Department's capacity to
provide such a significant level of resourcing for any larger number of projects. Major projects
are typically more complex projects, requiring close and regular work with proponents and
state/territory agencies. The projects will also often involve a high level of legal risk which
requires extensive engagement with the Department’s General Counsel and AGS.

As a consequence, there will be a number of other projects that will not be afforded major
project status but which are still significant projects in their own right (see Appendix B). The
Department's objective for these projects will be to manage resources, work closely with
proponents, and prioritise efforts towards improving performance to meet statutory timeframes.
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What criteria will be used to identify major projects?

The proposed criteria for major project selection are outlined below. Equal weightings will
apply to the proposed criteria.

e strategic significance: for example, critical national infrastructure which will facilitate further
growth, investment and job creation or to meet critical community needs

e economic contribution: having regard to key indicators such as expected revenue, upfront
and ongoing employment opportunities, and capital expenditure

e other Government policy objectives

The Division's SES leadership group will nominate projects for major project status, having
regard to the criteria. A brief for your approval of the projects will then be prepared.

What can proponents of major projects expect from the Department?

The Department will negotiate a client service charter with the proponent for each major
project. The service charter will provide proponents with greater certainty about the
assessment process, including roles and expectations of parties, timeframes for key decisions,
and any necessary caveats or contingencies regarding timing. Importantly (noting that these
projects are typically much more complex than standard projects), the timeframes negotiated
in the service charter are expected to be longer than statutory timeframes.

The service charter for each project will make no commitment or guarantee about the decision
outcome.

What reporting will be done on Major Projects?

The Department will provide a regular report to you on our performance with meeting
timeframes for major projects as part of our congestion busting performance reporting (see
Attachment B to brief).

No public reporting on performance is proposed for major projects. It is not considered
necessary or appropriate to maintain a public-facing report given the limited number of
projects to be afforded major projects status and the challenges with managing expectations of
the Department's regulated community more broadly.



LEX-23961 Page 12 of 18

Appendix A: Further information on proposed major projects

s. 22(1)(a)(i



s. 22(1)(a)(ii)



s. 22(1)(a)(ii)
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Appendix B: Other significant projects

There are around 80 other projects that, when evaluated against the criteria and compared
with the recommended list, are not recommended for inclusion as major projects (or at least
not at this stage), but which are still recognised as important and requiring active
management. The Department will be aiming to meet 100 per cent of statutory timeframes for
these projects. The Department does not recommend lowering the threshold for major project
status as this mean that all of these projects would qualify, which would create an
unsustainable administrative burden for the Department and your Office.

The approximately 80 other significant projects are listed below:
New South Wales

e Energy Connect (Transmission Grid and Interconnector SA to NSW)

s. 22(1)(a)(li

Victoria / Tasmania
e s.22(1)(@)(i)

¢ Marinus Link (second electricity interconnector between Tasmania and Victoria)

s. 22(1)(a)(ii)

Queensland

s. 22(1)(a)(li
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Western Australia

s. 22(1)(a)(i

e WA Metronet (Perth rail network investments):
- Thornlie-Cockburn Link
- Yanchep extension Stage 2 (Eglington to Yanchep)
- Morley-Ellenbrook Line Part 2: Malaga to Ellenbrook
- Projects not yet referred:
Karnup and/or Lakeland Stations
Level Crossing Upgrades

Byford Extension

s. 22(1)(a)(i

South Australia

s. 22(1)(a)(i
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s. 22(1)(a)(i

From: Declan O'Connor-Cox

Sent: Monday, 15 June 2020 2:57 PM

To: Kristy Domitrovic <Kristy.Domitrovic@environment.gov.au>

Cc: Gregory Manning <Gregory.Manning@environment.gov.au>; s. 22(1)(a)(ii)
s. 22(1)(a)(i)@environment.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Heads up - request from DPM MO [SEC=0FFICIAL:Sensitive]

Hi Kristy — s. 22(1)(a)(ii) earlier email refers, we have received a request through Infrastructure
from the DPM MO, we propose the following response. Please let me know asap if you want to
have a look or are ok for us to just handle it.

Declan

e What does major project status mean?
o Major Projects are projects that have been identified to be of economic or strategic
significance to Australia. These projects include: Is. 22(1)(a)(ii)
, the Marinus Link between Tasmania and Victoria s. 22(1)(a)(ii)

o The Commonwealth has committed to work with the states and territories to ‘fast-
track” environmental assessments to bring these projects on line as soon as
possible. This will include establishing joint assessment teams in order to halve the
time it has historically taken to complete these projects from 3.5 years to 21
months.

o Cutting Green Tape is not about removing protection for the environment. It is
about getting rid of unnecessary delays by working with the proponent and states
to establish agreed timeframes and other requirements, including environmental
information requirements up front so everyone knows what is needed.

o There will be additional resources placed on Major Projects to ensure assessments
can be completed efficiently and thoroughly in accordance with the Act.

e What does this mean for community consultation? (particularly assurance that fast
tracking does not mean any change to community consultation practise of timeframes)
o There will be no relaxation of any consultation requirements or environmental
safeguards under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act.
o The EPBC Act contains minimum consultation timeframes that will still occur for
these projects.

s. 22(1)(a)(il
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s. 22(1)(a)(il

From:s. 22(1)(a)(ii)

Sent: Monday, 15 June 2020 11:44 AM

To: Kristy Domitrovic <Kristy.Domitrovic@environment.gov.au>; Gregory Manning
<Gregory.Manning@environment.gov.au>; Declan O'Connor-Cox <Declan.O'connor-
Cox@environment.gov.au>

Subject: Heads up - request from DPM MO [SEC=0OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Hi All,

We have received a call from Infrastructure asking for some talking points asap for the DPM on
what Major Project status means and on the s. 22(1)(a)(ii) This request came through
from the DPM MO in response to questions from the community that have already been
received and likely media inquiries.

We propose to go back by answering the following questions:

e What does major project status mean?

e S.22(1)(a)(ii)

e \What does this mean for community consultation? (particularly assurance that fast
tracking does not mean any change to community consultation practise of timeframes)

I will complete this request after finishing the points that we discussed with Kristy this morning.

Happy to discuss,

s. 22(1)(a)(ii)

s. 22(1)(a)(ii)

Director | s. 22(1)(a)(ii) | s. 22(1)(a)(ii)
Department of Agriculture, Water and the Environment
Environment Approvals Division
John Gorton Building King Edward Terrace Parkes ACT 2600
GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601 Australia

s. 22(1)(a)(i)  @awe.gov.au





